
Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea 
 

1973-1982 
Concluded at Montego Bay, Jamaica on 10 December 1982 

 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.62/ SR.49 

 
 

Summary Records of Plenary Meetings 
49th plenary meeting 

 
Extract from the Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of  

the Sea, Volume I (Summary Records of Plenary Meetings of the First and Second Sessions, and 
of Meetings of the General Committee, Second Session) 

 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 
2009 



49th meeting—27 August 1974 209

49th meeting
Tuesday, 27 August 1974, at 9.30 a.m.

President: Mr. H. S. AMERASINGHE (Sri Lanka).

Report of the General Committee

1. The PRESIDENT said that since the last plenary meeting,
the General Committee had met on several occasions and pre-
pared a number of recommendations. He invited the
Rapporteur-General to present an oral report on the recom-
mendations of the General Committee.

2. Mr. RATTRAY (Jamaica) said that the General Com-
mittee recommended that the following statements, declara-
tions and documents should be drawn up to conclude the ses-
sion: a concise, factual, informative and non-controversial
statement to report on the activities of each of the main Com-
mittees; an oral statement by the Chairmen of the Main Com-
mittees summing up the progress of the work to date; a state-
ment by the Rapporteur-General summarizing the activities of
the plenary Conference; a final oral statement by the President
of the Conference summing up the results of the work accom-
plished by the Conference to date; and a letter from the Presi-
dent of the Conference to the President of the General As-
sembly transmitting a request for the holding of one or more
further sessions of the Conference and informing the General

Assembly of the steps taken by the Conference to invite na-
tional liberation movements and of any other recommenda-
tions which the Conference might wish to make.
3. Mr. DONIGE (Australia) said that he was speaking in his
capacity as a representative of the emerging nation of Papua
New Guinea in order to put forward the claim of Papua New
Guinea to participate in future sessions of the Conference. The
new law of the sea would be of profound importance for the
new nation, particularly with regard to archipelagos, islands,
the economic zone, including fisheries in particular, and pos-
sibly the problem of delimitation. A representative of Papua
New Guinea, at the 36th meeting had already stressed the im-
portance of the question of archipelagos to that territory in the
Second Committee. Consequently, Papua New Guinea consid-
ered that it would be preferable for it to join in the work of the
Conference as a separate entity as soon as possible. The Aus-
tralian Government fully shared that view.
4. Papua New Guinea had not yet formally exercised its right
to become independent, but the date of independence was
under consideration and would probably be in the near future.
If independence came before the next session, Papua New



210 Second Session—Plenary Meetings

Guinea, as a State in its own right, could participate in the
work of the Conference under the terms of operative para-
graph 7 of General Assembly resolution 3067 (XXVIII), by
becoming a Member of the United Nations or a specialized
agency. If not, special provision would have to be made to
enable it to participate in the session.
5. He therefore suggested that the Conference should recom-
mend the General Assembly to invite Papua New Guinea to
participate in the next session of the Conference as a full
member if independent, or as an observer, if it had not yet
attained independence.
6. Mr. BEEBY (New Zealand) fully supported that sugges-
tion. The recommendation to that effect should be drafted in
sufficiently general terms to apply to other territories which
were or would soon be in a similar situation, such as the Cook
Islands and Niue.
7. Mr. RIPHAGEN (Netherlands) also supported the sugges-
tion of the representative of Papua New Guinea. During the
general debate, the Netherlands delegation had already pointed
out that Surinam and the Netherlands Antilles were expected
to become independent in the near future and that it was im-
portant for those territories to be able to participate in the
work of the Conference as soon as possible.
8. The PRESIDENT suggested that a text could be drafted
and submitted to the Conference for its consideration and
approval at the next meeting, so that it could be submitted to
the 'General Assembly in the form of a recommendation.
9. Mr. STEVENSON (United States of America) said that
the United States Government, aware of its responsibilities for
the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands, had met on several
occasions prior to the Conference in Saipan and Washington
with members of the Joint Committee on the Law of the Sea of
the Congress of Micronesia to discuss the interests of the
people of the Territory. Although its own positions did not in
all respects coincide with the views of the Micronesians and it
did not fully agree with all the conclusions reached by the Joint
Committee, the United States Government had tried to take
into account the interests of the people of the Territory in the
positions it had adopted at the current Conference.
10. Therefore the United States delegation considered that
the Micronesians should define their own views and interests.
In the name of the Congress of Micronesia, Mr. Andon
Amaraich, senator, and president of the Joint Committee as
well as adviser to the United States delegation at the Confer-
ence had drafted a statement to that effect.
11. The PRESIDENT said that the statement would be is-
sued as a document of the Conference.'
12. Mr. ROSENNE (Israel), referring to the letter which the
President of the Conference was to address to the President of
the General Assembly, wished to reiterate the reservations and
objections which his delegation had made concerning the ad-
visability of inviting certain national liberation movements to
participate in the work of the Conference as observers.
13. Mr. RATTRAY (Jamaica), continuing the presentation
of the oral report of the General Committee, said that after
lengthy debate the General Committee had decided to recom-
mend that the plenary Conference request the General As-
sembly to organize a session at Geneva from 17 March to
3 May, or if possible, to 10 May in case the World Health
Assembly could postpone the beginning of its session for a
few days.
14. In addition, the General Committee had decided to rec-
ommend that the final session of the Conference should take
place in Caracas for purposes of signing the Final Act and
other instruments of the Conference, and that that session
should be held, if possible, in July/August 1975.

'Subsequently circulated as document A/CONF.62/L.6.

15. Mr. STA VROPOULOS (Special Representative of the
Secretary-General) said that he had received a cable from the
Director-General of the World Health Organization informing
him that the Organization would be unable to postpone the
opening of its Assembly beyond 12 May 1975, owing to the
importance of that session and because the International La-
bour Conference had to meet in June. Nevertheless, if the
Secretary-General of the United Nations requested him to do
so, the Director-General would be ready to propose to the
World Health Organization Executive Board that the opening
of the World Health Assembly should be deferred until 12
May. In accordance with the wishes of the Conference, the
Secretary-General of the United Nations would therefore
convey to the Director-General a request to that effect, on
which the Executive Board would take a decision. It was to be
anticipated that the postponement requested would be ac-
corded.

On the proposal of the General Committee, the Conference
recommended that the next session should be held at Geneva
from 17 March to 3 or 10 May 1975.
16. The PRESIDENT invited the Conference to take a deci-
sion on the General Committee's recommendation on holding
the final session at Caracas, for the signature of the Final Act
and other instruments of the Conference.
17. Mr. KOLOSOVSKY (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) said he considered that it would be premature to men-
tion the dates of the final session at Caracas in the recommen-
dation. A decision on that subject could be reached only at the
conclusion of the Geneva session, taking into account the pro-
gress achieved in the work of the Conference. Any immediate
decision regarding a date would, to some extent, subject the
participants in the next session to pressure and would be ill-
advised since it would have the effect of tying the hands of the
Venezuelan Government. His delegation, whose standpoint
had been shared by several other delegations at the meeting of
the General Committee, requested that its reservation should
be duly reflected in the summary records.
18. Miss MARTIN-SANE (France), supported by Mr.
KNOKE (Federal Republic of Germany), said that her delega-
tion supported the view expressed by the Soviet delegation. It
agreed that the Final Act of the Conference should be signed at
Caracas, but considered it preferable to mention no specific
date for the time being.
19. The CHAIRMAN noted the observations made and sug-
gested that the Conference should frame its recommendation in
the following terms:

"The Conference recommends that its final session should
be held at Caracas for the purpose of signature of the Final
Act and other instruments of the Conference."
// was so decided.

20. The CHAIRMAN said that he was interpreting the feel-
ings expressed by numerous delegations during the meetings of
the General Committee/in thanking the Austrian Government,
on behalf of the Conference, for its invitation and in expressing
regret that overriding considerations of timing had prevented
the Conference from accepting the hospitality offered by Aus-
tria and holding its next session there.
21. The majority of delegations attending the meetings of the
General Committee had felt that the Conference should con-
clude its work during 1975, but no formal decision had been
taken on the matter and it might not be possible to respect that
time-table if, as was also desired by a number of delegations,
only one session was to be held in 1975. The Fifth Committee
of the General Assembly would have to consider the recom-
mendations of the Conference and, at that stage, all delegations
would be able to put forward such proposals as they deemed
useful in that connexion.
22. Mr. RATTRAY (Jamaica) submitted the proposals of the
General Committee with regard to arrangements for the



SOth meeting—28 August 1974 211

closing meeting of the second session. At the conclusion of the
meeting on 29 August, statements would be made successively
by the chairmen of the regional groups, by the Chairman of the
Venezuelan delegation, the Minister for Foreign Affairs of
Venezuela, and by the President of the Conference. Following
a minute of silence for prayer or meditation, the President
would declare the session closed. The participants would then
proceed to the entrance of Parque Central to attend the cere-
mony of lowering the flags. The flags of the countries partici-
pating in the Conference would be hauled down, followed by
that of the United Nations. After the Venezuelan national an-
them had been played, the flag of Venezuela would be lowered
last of all.

The proposals of the General Committee relating to
arrangements for the closing ceremony of the second session
were adopted.

23. Mr. ZULETA TORRES (Colombia), Chairman of the
Group of 77, announced that the delegations belonging to that
Group would be in agreement concerning acceptance of the
offer made by the Government of Jamaica to act as host to the
future International Sea-Bed Authority. Because of its situa-
tion and its geographical position, Jamaica symbolized the
concerns of those who wished to see a new law of the sea
elaborated.

The meeting rose at 10.05 a.m.


	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


